ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2008
1: 07 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY
Representative Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghi |
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
Representative Lindsey Hol nes

SENATE JUDI ClI ARY
Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQuire
Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

MEMBERS ABSENT

HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY

Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s

SENATE JUDI Cl ARY

Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S)

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar

Carl Ekstrom - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Cormmi ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -1- February 18, 2008



Pet er Aschenbrenner - Fairbanks
Thomas G- Nave - Juneau

Robert Shel don - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Violent Crines Conpensati on Board

LeRoy J. Barker - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

CARL EKSTROM Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Governors of the Al aska Bar.

PETER ASCHENBRENNER, Appoi nt ee

to the Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct (CIC

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Comm ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct (CJCO).

THOMAS G NAVE, Esqg., Appointee

to the Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct (CIC)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Comm ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct (CJCO).

ROBERT SHELDON, Appoi nt ee

to the Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct (CIC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Comm ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct (CJCO).

LEROY J. BARKER, Appoi nt ee

to the Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board (VCCB)
Anchor age, Al aska

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 2- February 18, 2008



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Violent
Cri mes Conpensati on Board (VCCB).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR JAY RAMRAS called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Judiciary Standing Conmittees to order at 1:07:56 PM
Representative Hol nes, G uenber g, Dahl strom Coghi | I, and
Ranras, and Senators Therriault, Welechowski, MQuire, Huggins,
and French were present at the call to order.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar

1: 08: 57 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the committees would first consider
t he appointnent of Carl Ekstromto the Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar.

1: 10: 38 PM

CARL EKSTROM Appointee to the Board of Governors of the Al aska
Bar, conveyed that it is essential to have a public voice, a
| ayman's view of the process. He offered that his background is
in public affairs, marketing, and with small businesses. In
response to Chair French, M. Ekstrom stated that he is
interested in serving on the Board of Governors of the Al aska
Bar primarily due to his interest in the ethics of attorneys.
He reiterated that it is inportant to have a |layman's viewpoi nt
of the process and procedure. He stated that he would bring a
rural, small business perspective to any discussions held by the
body. He surmsed that this would be a |earning experience for
hi m

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Ekstrom whether he has had any life
experiences that would influence himon the topic of attorney's
ethics and if he has had any positive or negative experiences
wi th attorneys.

MR. EKSTROM answered that he has had both positive and negative
experiences with lawers, and characterized his experiences wth

attorneys as generally better ones rather than worse ones. He
stressed his value to the Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar
would be to provide a rural, small-business perspective on
i ssues.

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 3- February 18, 2008



SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to M. Ekstromis resune, and asked
\V/ g Ekstrom whether he is currently associated wth the
Wi t est one Comrunity Associ ati on.

MR. EKSTROM answered that he is not; although he founded the
association, he left the position in 2005.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Ekstrom to describe his past
interactions with the Al aska Travel Industry Association (ATIA).

MR. EKSTROM answered that he previously served on the ATIA

board, on its marketing and public relations commttees. He
pointed out that he still serves on its governnment relations
comittee. He stated that he is currently very involved with

the ATIA charity walk held in Anchorage. He characterized his
relationship W th sone ATIA  nenbers as bei ng cl ose
rel ati onshi ps.

SENATOR THERRI AULT offered his wunderstanding that nost people
who serve on the ATIA are involved in the tourism business. He
asked M. Ekstrom whether his ATIA service was due to his
i nvol venent with the Whitestone Community Association and R ka's
Roadhouse & Landing in Delta Junction, Al aska.

MR. EKSTROM said it was.
1: 15: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to M. Ekstrom s application, and
noted that he expressed interest in serving on the Public
O fices Comm ssion (APOC), the Al aska Bar Association, and the
Al aska Health Care Strategies Planning Council. She asked M.
Ekstrom to describe what piqued his interest in serving on any
boards and conm ssions, and whether soneone had encouraged him
to apply or if he decided to apply based on his own interest.

MR. EKSTROM responded that both had happened. He stressed his
interest in citizen involvenent, and noted that several tines
peopl e have encouraged him to beconme nore engaged in community
wor K.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked M. Ekstrom whether he feels strongly

about sonmething in particular that he would |ike to change, wth
respect to the Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar.

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 4- February 18, 2008



MR. EKSTROM indicated that he did not He stated that he
appreciates that a public nenber can provide the Board of
Governors of the Alaska Bar with a public perspective on matters.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Ekstrom whet her he has observed
any of the board's proceedi ngs.

MR. EKSTROM answered that he has not, adding that thus far his
only involvenment with the Bar Association has been to assist
Delta Junction high school students conduct mni-nock trials
about five years ago.

CHAI R FRENCH opined that M. Ekstrom seens qualified to serve in
the position. He said he would |ike to Iobby for |ower
association dues for attorneys because Al aska has the highest
bar association dues in the country. He stated that he has |ong
been an advocate for tiered dues, based on experience, such that
younger attorneys would pay |ower dues and ol der attorneys woul d
pay higher dues. He opined that the vast nmgjority of states
have sonme type of nodel to allow for tiered dues. He rel ayed
that he previously took to the Bar Association a proposal
suggesting tiered dues, which was i mredi ately rejected.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL rem nded nenbers that the nmenber's
signature on the conmttee report does not reflect approval or
di sapproval of the appointees and that the nom nations are
nmerely forwarded to the full legislature for confirmation or
rejection.

1:19: 57 PM

CHAIR RAMRAS made a notion to advance from the committees the
nom nation of Carl Ekstrom to the Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced fromthe joint neeting of the House and Senate Judiciary
St andi ng Conmi ttees.

Commi ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct

1: 20: 23 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the conmttees would next consider
the appointnment of Peter Aschenbrenner to the Conmm ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct (CJCO).

PETER ASCHENBRENNER, Appointee to the Comm ssion on Judici al
Conduct (CJC), stated that he has offices in Anchorage and
Fai r banks. He said that he has been practicing law for over 36

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 5- February 18, 2008



years. The area of judicial ethics is of particular interest to
him he noted, and relayed that he has witten over 10 articles
in the state bar journal on this topic, that he has appeared
before the CIJC as an advocate, that he has attended national
conferences, and that he has researched issues that have cone
before the CIC He surmsed that the attorney nenbers of the
CJC have sonme very heavy lifting to do because they are the
ones, as attorneys, that see the vast majority of problem
behaviors as judges are getting into trouble. He posited that
two areas of particular interest to the legislature that the CIC
is currently facing pertain to ethical conduct in settlenent
conferences and to del ays in naking deci sions.

1: 22: 04 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Aschenbrenner whether he's previously
served on the CJIC

MR. ASCHENBRENNER answered that he was previously appointed by

Governor Murkowski in 2004, and that his four-year termwll end
in March 2008; thus his current application is for reappointnent
to the CJC. In response to a question, he pointed out that the

state constitution provides for three different and divergent
points of view, and offered that judges and public nenbers bring
general and specific experiences to the CIC. Attorney nenbers,

t hough, provide proactive coments on problens judges encounter.

He pointed out that the vast majority of the [CIC s] proceedings
are confidential, and that as the beginnings of problem
behaviors energe, the CJC acts as a "m sconduct conm ssion."
The CJC also lays out guidelines to guide all judges in ethica

behavior in guiding parties into settlenment conferences.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked M. Aschenbrenner to speak to his
forthcomng article for the "The Bar Rag," titled "Hey Dude,
Were's My Wg?".

MR. ASCHENBRENNER noted that the judges in the United Kingdom
wear a wig down to the waist. This gives the British a sharp
and clear vision of its judges. He noted that since the United
St ates does not use such accoutrenments, it struggles to clearly

define its judges. He also noted that the public wants its
judges to decide cases in a tinely manner. In fact, current |aw
states that a judge cannot collect his/her payroll check if one
of his/her decisions is six nonths overdue. He asked nenbers
whet her they feel that law is appropriate. This is one issue

about which the CJC can provide gui dance and encourage judges to

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 6- February 18, 2008



issue their decisions prior to the aforenentioned deadline,
rather than to go w thout being paid.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Aschenbrenner whether he has
previously applied for judgeship.

MR. ASCHENBRENNER sai d he has not, though for about 16 years he
served as a part-tine U S. Magistrate in Fairbanks.

1:26: 44 PM

CHAIR FRENCH nmde a nption to advance from the commttees the
nom nation of Peter Aschenbrenner to the Comm ssion on Judici al
Conduct . There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced from the joint neeting of +the House and Senate
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittees.

1:27:10 PM

CHAI R RAVMRAS announced that the commttees would next consider
the appointment of Thomas G Nave, Esq., to the Commi ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct (CJCO).

THOMAS G NAVE, Esq., Appointee to the Comm ssion on Judicial
Conduct (CJC), stated that he has practiced law for over 31
years; that wuntil 1985, he was deputy director of the Public
Def ender Agency (PDA); and that since that time he has been
engaged in private practice, which enconpasses crimnal defense,
general civil, and litigation. He offered that he has regularly
represented attorneys who have been sued for nmalpractice, and
noted that he too has served on the CIC for four years. He noted
that the three attorneys that serve on the CIC do not hold a
common view of everything, but that each one brings his/her own
perspective, and stated that he has enjoyed serving on the CIC
the past four years. And although initially he did not intend to
reapply, he remarked, he changed his mnd when he realized that
the learning curve seens to be so steep. He pointed out that he
has been to national training, held in Chicago, Illinois, twce
in the past four years. It takes tinme to conme up to speed on
what the judicial canons state, what they nean, and how they are
applied in practice. He stated that he felt obligated to put
the training he has received thus far to effective use.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that he has a conflict of

interest in that M. Nave has represented other nenbers of his
famly.

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -7- February 18, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Nave whether he has a
potential conflict of interest since his wife works for the
Departnent of Law (DCL).

MR. NAVE answered that he did not believe that a conflict of
interest exists since the DOL's work falls outside the purview
of the CJC, the sole purpose of which, he opined, is to
determ ne, based on conplaints that are filed, whether a
particul ar judge has crossed an ethical line. The DOL plays no
part in that matter, he offered.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to M. Nave's resunme and asked him
to provide nore information on the statement included in it that
read, "I have also been retained by B.P. Exploration (Al aska) on
two occasions as a trial consultant and retained by law firnms as
an expert witness in |egal nal practice cases."”

MR. NAVE explained that that statement was part of is his
initial application submtted four years ago. He noted that BP

hired himtwce as part of its trial litigation team because it
wanted a |ocal perspective. He stated that he did not
participate in trials, but instead assisted BP in setting up a
nock trial situation and focus groups. In response to another

guestion, he said he thought that BP was preparing for a trial
that would decide if it was paying its fair share of taxes to
the state. M. Nave added, "It settled, basically, on the
court house steps.”

1:33:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM nade a notion to advance from the
committees the nomnation of Thonmas G Nave, Esq., to the
Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct. There being no objection, the

confirmati on was advanced from the joint neeting of the House
and Senate Judiciary Standing Commttees.

1:33:52 PM

CHAI R RAVMRAS announced that the commttees would next consider
t he appoi ntnent of Robert Sheldon to the Comm ssion on Judicial
Conduct (CJCO).

1:33:59 PM

ROBERT SHELDON, Appointee to the Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct

(CQJC), relayed that in the past two decades he has been invol ved
in serving in a public policy venue. He nentioned that he

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 8- February 18, 2008



| earned that a position on the CIC would becone vacant in Mrch
2008 during a casual conversation with a friend.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked M. Sheldon whether this is his
first tine to apply to serve on a board or comm ssion.

MR. SHELDON said he was previously involved with a Tai wan- Al aska
Trade & Investnent Cooperation Council (TATICC) group under the
Mur kowski adm ni stration, an investnent council that explored,
arranged, and facilitated bilateral trade between Al aska and
Tai wan.

CHAIR RAMRAS referred to M. Sheldon's resune, and noted that at
present M. Sheldon assists in managing a private equity fund
which invests in latter-stage, power-related conpanies. Chair
Ranras asked M. Shel don whether any of those conpanies have an
interest in the State of Al aska.

MR. SHELDON said they do not. He further elaborated that only
two holdings remain in the fund since its investnents have been
sold off to public markets.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked M. Sheldon whether he has had any
particul ar experiences with the judicial branch that have led to
either positive or negative opinions.

MR. SHELDON indicated that he has not, though he is intrigued
with the CIC s ethics advice and preventi on conponent. He said
that the process of reviewing the CICs prior opinions and
actions attracted himto the CIC

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked M. Shel don whether there is
anything he would like to specifically acconplish if he were to
serve on the CJIC

MR. SHELDON sai d he does not have anything specific he wi shes to
acconplish other than to just performhis public duty.

1: 39: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nmade a notion to advance from the
commttees the nom nation of Robert D. Sheldon to the Comm ssion
on Judicial Conduct. There being no objection, the confirmation
was advanced from the joint neeting of the House and Senate
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittees.

Violent Crines Conpensati on Board

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -9- February 18, 2008



1: 39: 41 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the commttees would |ast consider
the reappointnment of Leroy J. Barker to the Violent Crines
Conmpensati on Board (VCCB).

1: 39: 57 PM

LEROY J.BARKER, Appointee to the Violent Crines Conpensation
Board (VCCB), relayed that he retired from practicing |law three
years ago and has served for the last five years on the Violent
Crimes Conpensation Board (VCCB). He said that he is requesting
to be reappointed to serve on the VCCB, characterized it as a
worthwhile activity, and remarked that it is inportant to have
sonmeone with experience continuing to serve. Currently the VCCB
consi sts of one physician, one lay person, and hinself, as its
attorney, he added. He again expressed interest in continuing
to serve on the VCCB

CHAI R RAMRAS asked M. Barker to explain the types of projects
t he VCCB undert akes.

MR. BARKER explained that the VCCB is a statew de board, and
that victinms of violent crinmes apply for conpensation based on
crines that are subject to the VCCB, as set out by statute. He
offered that statutes also establish restraints with respect to
what conpensation can be awarded to victins. He characterized
the work of the VCCB as one in which the board nenbers review
files and rarely hear from the claimnts. Victins seek
assistance, lost inconme, and nedical costs, and the nost
inmportant thing the VCCB does, he surmsed, is to offer
emergency awards up to $1,500, primarily to help relocate
victinms of donestic violence. Al first responders are required
to notify victins that the VCCB exists, he noted.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked M. Barker whether the VCCB recei ves matching
federal funds.

MR. BARKER answered that the VCCB receives $.40 on the dollar in
mat ching funds, and that a portion of the permanent fund is
retained for the crimnal justice system and that the VCCB
receives a portion of that noney - this represents the VCCB' s
primary fundi ng source.

CHAIR RAMRAS asked M. Barker to outline any suggested
i nprovenents for the VCCB

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 10- February 18, 2008



MR. BARKER answered that the VCCB would like to have funding
appropriated to the VCCB, and not |apse, in order to benefit
fromthe matching federal funds and thereby assist nore victins.
Currently any surplus funding, from court-ordered restitution,
subrogation clains, and donations revert to the general fund
(GF). In the past, the VCCB has depleted its funds and
therefore had to reduce conpensation to victins. He offered his
understanding that bills have been introduced that would assist
t he VCCB. He further noted that nobst victins are inpoverished
or destitute.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked how nmany victinms are conpensated annually
t hrough the VCCB

MR. BARKER offered his wunderstanding that 730 victins were
conpensated "this year."

CHAI R RAMRAS surm sed that enhancing the VCCB funding via the
af orenentioned legislation would assist the victins of violent
crines.

MR. BARKER concurr ed.
1: 49: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG rel ayed that he has known M. Barker
for over 30 years, and recommends his continuation on the VCCB
Representative Gruenberg recalled that a nunber of years ago the
VCCB' s jurisdiction was expanded to include arson, and asked M.
Bar ker whet her other crinmes should be added.

MR. BARKER said that he did not think so. He opined that the
VCCB has not turned down anyone who has suffered from a violent
crine. He discouraged expanding the VCCB' s jurisdiction to
property crimes due to the trenendous cost involved in doing so.
It's not that the victins of property crines don't deserve help,
but there is a lack of resources for providing assistance to the
| arge nunbers of victins of that type of activity.

SENATOR McCGUI RE thanked M. Barker for continuing to serve. The
VCCB is an unconpensated board, she noted, and said its nenbers
enbody the highest |evel of service.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES relayed that sonmeone she holds in high

regard has referred to M. Barker as "the ethical gold
standard. "

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -11- February 18, 2008



1: 51: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM nade a notion to advance from the
conmmittees the nomination of LeRoy J. Barker to the Violent
Crinmes Conpensation Board. There being no objection, the
confirmation was advanced fromthe joint neeting of the House and
Senate Judiciary Standing Committees.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttees, the joint

nmeeting of the House and Senate Judiciary Standing Committees
was adjourned at 1:52 p.m

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -12- February 18, 2008



